CITY OF BRIDGEPORT
ECONOMIC AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
AND ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE
REGULAR MEETING
JUNE 18, 2025

ATTENDANCE: Mary McBride-Lee, Co-chair; Maria Valle, Co-chair; Scott Burns,
Jorge Cruz Sr., Michelle Lyons

OTHERS: A. Ojeda, Central Grants; Christina Resto, Assistant Town Clerk; Joseph
Katz, Economic Development; Tammy Papa, Social Services Deputy
Director

CALL TO ORDER

Co-chair McBride-Lee called the meeting to order at 6:04 p.m. A quorum was present.

APPROVAL OF COMMITTEE MINUTES:

* April 30, 2025 (Special Meeting).

** COUNCIL MEMBER CRUZ MOVED THE MINUTES OF THE APRIL 30, 2025
SPECIAL MEETING.

** COUNCIL MEMBER LYONS SECONDED.

** THE MOTION TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE APRIL 30, 2025 SPECIAL
MEETING AS SUBMITTED PASSED UNAIMOUSLY.

* May 21, 2025 (Regular Meeting).

** COUNCIL MEMBER CRUZ MOVED THE MINUTES OF THE MAY 21, 2025
REGULAR MEETING.

** COUNCIL MEMBER LYONS SECONDED.

** THE MOTION TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE MAY 21, 2025 REGULAR
MEETING AS SUBMITTED PASSED UNAIMOUSLY.

* June 2, 2025 (Public Hearing).

« COUNCIL MEMBER CRUZ MOVED THE MINUTES OF THE JUNE 2, 2025
PUBLIC HEARING.

** COUNCIL MEMBER LYONS SECONDED.

** THE MOTION TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE JUNE 2, 2025 PUBLIC
HEARING PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.

City of Bridgeport

ECD and Environment

Regular Meeting

June 18, 2025 Page 1



82-24 Grant Submission: re Southwestern Connecticut Agency on Aging (SWCAA) — Title
III Funding Older Americans Act Grant Program — Bridgeport Senior Center
Recreation Activities (#26533).

A representative from Central Grants came forward and gave an overview of the SWCAA grant
that would allow the seniors to continue activities. This is a grant of $50,000 with an in kind
grant match of $10,000. She reviewed the details of the finances.

Council Member Burns asked for details regarding the matching funding. He was told that they
supply SWCCA with the details. Council Member Burns asked where this was included in the
budget. The Grant Department looks at the Department of Aging and used their figures to
determine the cost of the fringe benefits for the employees that are staffing the program. Rent is
also noted on the budget.

The discussion moved to how the outside instructors are paid and how the funds are allocated.
Last year, the grant funding was reduced across the board. Council Member Cruz asked if the
grant funding was covering the payment for the instructors and the City covers the insurance. He
was told that this was so.

Council Member McBride-Lee asked how many instructors were involved. She was told that it
was six different instructors, including Tai Chi and line dancing. When there is no grant funding,
the staff applies of CDBG funding and the City also gives the Center some funding.

** COUNCIL MEMBER CRUZ MOVED TO APPROVE AGENDA ITEM 82-24 GRANT
SUBMISSION: RE SOUTHWESTERN CONNECTICUT AGENCY ON AGING
(SWCAA) — TITLE III FUNDING OLDER AMERICANS ACT GRANT PROGRAM -
BRIDGEPORT SENIOR CENTER RECREATION ACTIVITIES (#26533).

** COUNCIL MEMBER LYONS SECONDED.

** THE MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.

83-24 Grant Submission: re State of Connecticut Department of Public Health —
Implementing a Public Health Approach to Address Community Gun Violence
(#26902).

The staff member greeted the Committee members and said that Ms. Papa was present to answer
any additional concerns. This grant is focused on addressing public health in relation to
community gun violence and targeted high risk areas. The city is partnering with local non-profit
groups

Council Member Lyons asked about the various organizations that the group would be working
with. The staff member listed a number of them, including MIRA, GBPAT, and Life Bridge.
These groups have already been involved in reaching out to the schools. Discussion followed.
RYSAP is now known as Catalyst.

Ms. Papa explained that the Police Department will be working with the Lighthouse program.

City of Bridgeport

ECD and Environment

Regular Meeting

June 18, 2025 Page 2



Council Member Burns asked whether the grant was competitive. Ms. Papa reviewed the details
with him and noted that Bridgeport was a hybrid community. Discussion followed about whether
the City would receive $1 million and whether it would be spread out over two years.

Discussion followed about how the various areas were chosen for program targeting. Ms. Papa
said that one criteria was the proximity to a school. RYSAP does outreaches to other areas of the
city that are not close to the schools. Life Bridge has a program in the high schools.

Council Member Valle asked about who receives the final data report and whether the City is
informed about the level of success that the programs reached. Ms. Papa said that the staff does
review the final statistics.

Council Member McBride-Lee said that she is familiar with MIRA and Life Bridge. She had
concerns about whether the staff was accomplishing the work that they were paid to do. Ms.
Papa then spoke about how the various programs work together regarding both students and
returning residents. Discussion followed.

Council Member Valle asked if this was a reoccurring grant. Ms. Papa said that the various
programs apply on their own and then the City contributes to their programs.

Council Member Cruz said that he hears about teens and young adults, but not much about the
elementary school students. He would like to see more emphasis on the children that was not just
sports programs. Ms. Papa said that there would be monthly meetings about this and this will be
discussed. The hope is that by building relationships between the Police and the Lighthouse
students, it will reduce future issues.

Council Member Burns said during the last two summers, there were youth that worked on the
composting project. Ms. Papa said that they would consider how to utilize the program Council
Member Burns spoke about regardless of whether there was grant funding or not.

Council Member Lyons said for the record that if the application doesn’t go through the
Economic and Community Development and Environment Committee, it should go through
Education and Social Services.

** COUNCIL MEMBER LYONS MOVED TO APPROVE AGENDA ITEM 83-24
GRANT SUBMISSION: RE STATE OF CONNECTICUT DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC
HEALTH - IMPLEMENTING A PUBLIC HEALTH APPROACH TO ADDRESS
COMMUNITY GUN VIOLENCE (#26902).

** COUNCIL MEMBER CRUZ SECONDED.

** THE MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.

84-24 Grant Submission: re Connecticut State Library FY 2026 Targeted Grant for
Historic Documents Preservation Program (#26213).

Ms. Resto, the Assistant Town Clerk, came forward and presented the item and reviewed the
details of the grant funding. This will assist with the cost of scanning documents.

City of Bridgeport

ECD and Environment

Regular Meeting

June 18, 2025 Page 3



Council Member Burns asked about the digitalizing of the documents. Ms. Resto said that there
were some documents that were already digitalized both before and after the document dates and
these items were not uploaded.

Council Member McBride-Lee asked for clarification on the documents. She was told that this
was being used to preserve the City records. There are other components that they could use
once this is completed. Council Member McBride-Lee said there was a lot of work going on in
the office. Ms. Resto explained that they have a company come in and do the work. The
department already has a good relationship with the company. The company understands that the
department can only spend $10,000 and they have been under contract.

Council Member Valle asked if they have thought about having a staff member trained to do this.
Ms. Resto said that they are getting ready for elections and recording land records, so they don’t
have enough staff to do it. She added that the company has worked with the City for over 20
years, but they actually changed their name at one point. The City retained physical records, but
having it digitalized helps tremendously. It will allow the records to be uploaded. The older
books are very heavy and difficult to manage. This has also been done for the maps in the past.

Council Member Cruz said that it was about time that the City digitalized the records. Ms. Resto
said that they have the information available in the office via computer but that they do not have
the images available. That requires them to go into the vault, get the book and scan the image.
This digitalization will eliminate a lot of the work involved.

Council Member Lyons said that she had used the books before and they are hard to handle. She
noted that in Washington, D.C. they have the historical records and after long periods of time,
the document paper starts to disintegrate.

**COUNCIL MEMBER LYONS MOVED TO APPROVE AGENDA ITEM 84-24
GRANT SUBMISSION: RE CONNECTICUT STATE LIBRARY FY 2026 TARGETED
GRANT FOR HISTORIC DOCUMENTS PRESERVATION PROGRAM (#26213).
**COUNCIL MEMBER CRUZ SECONDED.

Council Member Burns thanked Ms. Resto for seeking out the grant and felt that this was
excellent for the City.

** THE MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.

85-24 Grant Submission: re Southwestern Connecticut Agency on Aging (SWCAA) — Title
III Funding Older Americans Act Grant Program - Elderly Hispanic Outreach
Program (#26270).

A staff member came forward and gave a brief overview of the grant program for the Elderly
Hispanic Outreach. They have put in a request for slightly over $53,000 and there is a City match
required of slightly over $9,000. The majority of the money will cover the salary and the fringe
for the coordinator along with pamphlets, and brochures. There will also be rent money and
some allocation for food and beverages.

City of Bridgeport

ECD and Environment

Regular Meeting

June 18, 2025 Page 4



Council Member Lyons asked where the coordinator’s office was located. She was told it is
currently in the Eisenhower Senior Center. They are in the process of hiring a coordinator. There
is someone who has been doing this work for the past year.

Council Member Lyons noted that the rent for the office was slightly over $11,000. She said that
the City had just paid rent for the Senior Center and wanted to know why this was an additional
rent. Ms. Papa explained that the coordinator needs to have a separate area because they review
benefits and other confidential information. It can’t be done in the recreational hall. The rent is
based off the square footage and they put down the area for the recreational activities. They
didn’t include the square footage for the office space. The City owns the building and the square
footage of the office space will be used as the matching funds. Discussion followed about the
details.

Council Member Cruz asked for more of break down in advance since this was a City building
that was being use and the City was using the cost of the space as the matching portion for the
grant.

** COUNCIL MEMBER CRUZ MOVED TO APPROVE AGENDA ITEM 85-24 GRANT
SUBMISSION: RE SOUTHWESTERN CONNECTICUT AGENCY ON AGING
(SWCAA) — TITLE III FUNDING OLDER AMERICANS ACT GRANT PROGRAM -
ELDERLY HISPANIC OUTREACH PROGRAM (#26270).

** COUNCIL MEMBER LYONS SECONDED.

** THE MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.

86-24 Grant Submission: re Connecticut Department of Energy and Environmental
Protection (DEEP) Land - National Park Service Land and Water Conservation Fund
Outdoor Recreation Legacy Partnership Grants Program (#26462)

Mr. Katz was present to answer questions. The staff members said that was for restoring a
portion of the salt marsh and tidal channels, a marsh board walk and a floating river board walk.
This is a 50/50 match and the Federal portion is $1,122,803.00 and this amount must be matched
by the City. The money will be used for construction.

Council Member Burns asked if the $1 million dollar City portion was going to be bonded. Mr.
Katz said that this was so and they had included it in the Capital Plan.

Council Member Valle asked for a more precise description of where the parcel was located. Mr.
Katz said that it is on the Pequonnock River by the Stratford Avenue Bridge and general known
as the Sliver by the River. Currently most of the parcel is asphalt. By restoring the native tidal
marsh, it will help with flooding by acting as a buffer. There is a recreational aspect and
educational aspect with signage along with the coastal restoration aspect. This is a National
Grant program through the National Parks Service. The City did receive funding for Phase I
which restored the green area on the map. Now this will be for restoring the salt marsh. The
funds were passed through the State and they negotiated the contracts which were just approved.
Now construction on Phase I can begin.

City of Bridgeport

ECD and Environment

Regular Meeting

June 18, 2025 Page 5



Council Member McBride-Lee asked what would happen if the City was not awarded the
funding. Mr. Katz said that the City was working with the Trust for Public Land, who are
amazing partners and they have been working with Ms. Cally Guasti, the CT Senior Program
Manager at the Trust for Public Land, who has been scheduling events along the river and the
shore during the year. He said that there were some other grant opportunities that they were
looking at if this grant is not awarded.

Council Member Cruz wished to know if the site needed remediation. Mr. Katz said that they
have the full environmental assessments for Phase I, II & III. When that assessment was done,
the final report was that the site was clean. There is a possibility of a small clean up needed, but
that remains to be determined.

Council Member Cruz asked about the bus company’s location and asked if they would be
involved. Mr. Katz said that they have been working with GBT and they have a regular meetings
with them about other projects. He said that he would look into involving them in the project.
Council Member Cruz said that it would be important to have everyone in the area involved. Mr.
Katz said that it had been called the Waterfront Pathway, but is now referred to as the Bridgeport
Sea Walk and would be a linear park along both sides of the river. Discussion followed.

Council Member Burns pointed out that the railroad tracks were right there and asked if the State
was involved. Mr. Katz said it was discussed in the design phase due to the number of uses on
the site including UI and MetroNorth, and the number of permits that were needed.

The discussion followed about the existing boardwalk and who owns it.

** COUNCIL MEMBER LYONS MOVED TO APPROVE AGENDA ITEM 86-24
GRANT SUBMISSION: RE CONNECTICUT DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY AND
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (DEEP) LAND - NATIONAL PARK SERVICE
LAND AND WATER CONSERVATION FUND OUTDOOR RECREATION LEGACY
PARTNERSHIP GRANTS PROGRAM (#26462).

** COUNCIL MEMBER CRUZ SECONDED.

** THE MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.

ADJOURNMENT

** COUNCIL MEMBER CRUZ MOVED TO ADJOURN.
** COUNCIL MEMBER LYONS SECONDED.
** THE MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.

The meeting adjourned at 7:10 p.m.
Respectfully submitted,

S. L. Soltes
Telesco Secretarial Services

City of Bridgeport

ECD and Environment

Regular Meeting

June 18, 2025 Page 6



